
 City of Carlisle 
Meeting Agenda 

City Council 

CARLISLE CITY COUNCIL 

City of Carlisle 
760 Central Avenue 

Carlisle, OH 45005 
www.carlisleoh.org 

Tuesday, October 24, 2023 7:00 PM Council Chambers 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
A. Work Session Minutes – October 10, 2023 
B. Regular Meeting Minutes – October 10, 2023 

 
4. Public Forum 

 
5. Council Report 

 
6. Mayor’s Report 

 
7. City Manager’s Report 

 
8. Committee Report 

 
9. Old Business 

 
10. New Business 

 
11. First Readings of Ordinances and Resolutions 

A. Resolution 20-23 Then and Now Certificate – Perry and Associates CPAs (Single Reading) 
B. Resolution 21-23 Warren County 2024 Tax Rates and Amounts (Emergency) 
C. Resolution 22-23 Montgomery County 2024 Tax Rates and Amounts (Emergency) 

 
12. Second & Third Readings of Ordinances and Resolutions 

 
13. Executive Session 

 
14. Adjournment 



Page 1 of 6 
 

CITY OF CARLISLE COUNCIL – WORK SESSION MINUTES 
Tuesday, October 10, 2023 

CARLISLE COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CARLISLE, OHIO 
 

Mayor Winkler called the Carlisle, Ohio City Council Work Session of Tuesday, October 10, 2023, to order at 6:00 
PM in the Council Chambers at the Carlisle City Hall building, 760 Central Avenue, Carlisle, Ohio with the following 
members in attendance: 
 
Council Attendees:  

Mr. Tim Humphries Mr. William Bicknell  
Mrs. Debbie Kemper Mr. Chris Stivers  
Mr. Michael Kilpatrick Mr. Randy Winkler, Mayor 
Mr. Jason Faulkner  
     

Staff members present:  City Manager, Chris Lohr  
         
Discussion Items: 

Cost of Living Adjustment 

1. Mr. Lohr informed Council that Mr. Stivers would be 15 minutes late to the meeting.  
 

a. Mr. Lohr presented Council with the annual Cost of Living Adjustment packet. Included was an annual 
survey from Miami Valley Communications Council showing anticipated area jurisdictions non-union 
employees receiving for cost of living adjustments in 2024. The lowest adjustment is 2%, up to 5% in West 
Carrollton. The average cost of living adjustment is around 3%. Mrs. Kemper asked if there was knowledge 
of Warren County or Franklin’s adjustment. Mr. Lohr did not have those numbers but would get the 
numbers before voting. Mr. Lohr wanted to get some numbers on inflation and what we have been looking 
at for the past couple of years. The monthly inflation numbers have settled down a little bit, this year and 
the latter half of this year, but they are still high. Mr. Lohr does not think it will be reasonable to match what 
inflation has done over these past couple of years and none of the other jurisdictions that they pulled were 
doing that either. Mr. Lohr thinks 3% is reasonable to keep us competitive and with what inflation is doing. 
Mr. Faulkner asked if that was what Mr. Lohr was already budgeting for. Mr. Lohr said yes. Mr. Kilpatrick 
said looking at part one, even 3% isn’t going to get us anyone from the private sector, we are still going to 
lose to the private sector. Mr. Lohr said it’s true. Mr. Kilpatrick said he doesn’t know if we can afford to go 
more than 3%, but just looking here at the average for the last year it is 5.5%. Mr. Lohr said it has been 
bad. Mr. Lohr said one of the things he has kept in mind when we are budgeting, and we are planning on 
3%, is we have had discussions about that 10% pension pick-up and we will have that discussion again. 
He thinks if we were to provide that to employees, even though we are not keeping up with what the actual 
inflation numbers were that we could offset buying power loss that everyone has experienced over the past 
couple of years so that is a consideration, as well. Mr. Faulkner said let me ask you a question about that. 
How would you feel as an employee if you got PERS picked up, well everyone has it, how many 
employees don’t have it, he knows the cops don’t have it? Mr. Lohr said he can tell position wise because 
he does not, off the top of his head, know the number. Police Officers, all the Patrol Officers do not have it. 
The clerk of courts, the Utility Clerk, Finance Clerk, Assistant to the City Manager/Council Clerk, Code 
Enforcement Officer. So basically, it is just the City Manager and Department Heads who get that right 
now. Mr. Faulkner said he is wondering how it would be received if you did one or the other instead of both 
in the same year. Mr. Lohr said he didn’t know. Mr. Faulkner said it is kind of a raise. Mr. Lohr said it 
absolutely is, he thinks there are people who would certainly recognize that it is a big bump in their 
paycheck. We have a challenge being competitive with our Police Officers. For us to compete with the rest 
of the jurisdiction in Warren Couty. We maybe, really need to add the 10% pension pick up as well as 
adjusting cost of living. Those are just some thoughts he had about it. Mrs. Kemper asked they are in 
PERS now, right, the Clerk? Mr. Lohr answered yes, Police Officers are in Ohio Police and Fire. Everybody 
else is in PERS. Right now, we pay the 14% that’s required of the employer and they’re paying their own 
10%. Mr. Kilpatrick asked if the average is 5.175% over the last year? Mr. Lohr says inflation-wise, yes. He 
wanted to present this information and prime the pumps with discussions we will be having moving forward 
with the Finance Committee and having to decide. Not only with what we do with the cost of living raise, 
but also the pension pick up.  



City of Carlisle Council Work Session Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Mr. Lohr asked if anyone had anything else on cost of living adjustment before we move on. Mr. Stivers 
asked what is the percentage we are talking about for Carlisle? Mr. Lohr said right now, he is budgeting for 
3%. Quickly, the first page is the list of the Miami Valley Communications Council of what they are doing 
mostly in the Dayton area, what they are projecting for next year. The third page is information about what 
inflation has looked like the past three years. It does look like, at least in the last four months or so, it is 
starting to stabilize around 3%. He doesn’t know if that will stick. That is something he had in mind as 
Kristina and him were putting together a draft budget. He decided at least for the draft to do 3%. The final 
page in the packet is because we had agreed to a 3% increase for the police union next year.  There is 
that additional piece of supporting information that if we did a 3% for the non-union, we would be on par for 
our Police Union employees, as well.  

10% Pension Pick-Up 

a. Mr. Lohr said just a quick update with the 10% pension pick-up discussion, that was talked about that 
previously and he wanted to get back to Council about it. We are having continuing issues with getting a 
Police Officer candidate to fill our open spot. At the same time, yesterday the Chief was informed another 
Police Officer is in a process with Beavercreek. That’s not great news. He thinks that relates to the pension 
pick-up discussion in terms of competitiveness. I will compile some more information about who is 
providing that pension pick-up in the area. He knows we have talked about Franklin doing the 10% pension 
pickup and potentially Springboro. He just wants to make sure we are having that conversation, as we are 
putting the budget together for next year. Mr. Lohr thinks it is certainly worth considering so that we remain 
competitive.  
 

b. Mr. Lohr said we have been working on some updated financial forecasts. In general, they look pretty 
good. They are not quite ready to provide it to you tonight. In the general fund we are showing an 
increased fund block balance year over year through 2029. Obviously, that is positive, increasing fund 
balances there. The police fund is solvent until 27, or 28. Then we cross that 20% threshold. That is 
obviously not an idea, but that gives us five years financially to adjust and hopefully find some revenue to 
compensate for that. We are still working on our utility funds. It doesn’t, at least at first glance, look like we 
have any long-term issues there. We have a very healthy balance in the sewer fund. We are trying to 
determine whether that money has been set aside for a purpose or we are just lucky enough to end up with 
that balance there. In general, the fud forecasts look good for the general fund and looking at the police 
fund it looks as good or better than some of the estimates that he bought, and Ryan brought in the past. 
Mr. Falkner asked Mr. Lohr while he is working on this can get a comparable on at least entry level pay 
rates for cops? Mr. Lohr said yes. Mayor Winkler asked which officer may be leaving. Mr. Lohr could not 
recall his name off the top of his head. Mr. Humphries asked if it would be too much to do an exit interview. 
Mr. Lohr said no, but we are not at that point, yet. He agreed it would be a good idea.  
 
Mr. Bicknell asked to circle back because this is the second officer in a short amount of time, and he would 
like to know what is going on. He does not think it just is money, because the money has not changed 
drastically. Mr. Kilpatrick said other cities’ money has gone up. Mr. Bicknell said a lot of Officers we have 
had have been here understand the situation and it is a whole community type thing. There must be 
something else. Mr. Humphries said the night that Franklin played Carlisle he stood with an Officer a half 
hour – forty minutes while he ran the remote and he is here because he is single, but he is engaged and 
getting married next year and that is an equation that is going to change in his life, so what he can do 
today with what he is getting he knows he is going to have to go to Franklin money, Springboro money 
because his wife and baby to be are going to require that. There are always different dynamics. Mayor 
Winkler said one of the things he has been told is that when we have run the police levees the community 
didn’t support them. They do not feel supported and that’s a comment that has been made toward him. Mr. 
Kilpatrick said the one levee we ran was not executed well. The thing is if they look at it, they are not going 
to stop getting a paycheck. They should see that we are looking at different ways to make this happen. He 
wanted to know if we plan to put more officers on overtime or plan to reduce staff because overtime is 
going to be costly. Mr. Lohr said Chief and he have had conversations about that and there is a potential to 
change the scheduling, maybe a twelve-hour shift instead of the ten we are on. Right now, we have some 
overlapping shifts, so we have more time now, but we have two Officers on shift and that is probably going 
to be reduced when we lose another Officer. Mayor Winkler said that is a long day, especially with a lot of 



City of Carlisle Council Work Session Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

time off in between. Mr. Lohr agreed it was a long day. Mr. Bicknell asked if this potential Officer leaves, 
what does that take us down to? Four full time? Mr. Lohr answered that takes us down to five. Mr. 
Kilpatrick asked what our Reserve Officers do because he knows it will affect them also. Mr. Lohr said they 
will do some shifts occasionally, but from his understanding it is only for special events. Mr. Kilpatrick 
asked, coming for parades, coming for big games, that sort of thing? Mr. Lohr said yes. Mr. Stivers asked 
five plus Chief? Mr. Lohr said yes, five Officers and then Chief. Mr. Stivers said he is not expecting Chief to 
work full shifts. Mr. Lohr replied he knows he has spent some time out there, but I don’t know that he is 
taking full shifts. Mayor Winkler said the Chief will go out during the daytime with an Officer if there needs 
to be a second Officer, but not full shifts.  
 
Mr. Faulkner said he wonders what our health premiums compared to others. Mr. Lohr said that what we 
are paying here in Carlisle, compared to his last employer, is what comes out of your paycheck is higher 
and the quality of the plans is lower. Mr. Faulkner said you’re paying the family rate here and you paid the 
family rate there, so it’s more expensive for you here and it’s not as good? Mr. Lohr answered yes. Just in 
general we are not too far off the market, but he knows there are better opportunities out there. Mrs. 
Kemper confirmed this is something we have been signed up to for a year. Mr. Lohr confirmed this. Mr. 
Humphries asked if HSAs are shoppable and it if the same as everything else and up on the table? Mr. 
Lohr stated there are multiple options we can pursue to get better rates. We can change our broker or 
shop it out, which is common for Carlisle. Simply we would put in all our information, give the data to the 
insurance companies and they would come back and tell us what percentage they would cover us for. Mr. 
Lohr believed that has been done regularly. Beyond that, he thinks our biggest challenge for getting good 
health rates is our group size. For an insurer it only takes one person’s serious claim, and it blows us off 
the charts compared to what they are bringing in for insurance premiums. Mr. Lohr is pursuing getting us 
into the Ohio Benefits Cooperative. He is currently having employees complete Formfire health 
questionnaires. They have until Sunday to complete those. Once we have those, we will give them to the 
broker for the OBC and they will send it to Jefferson Healthplan who will complete a risk assessment on 
us. The OBC board will take a vote on us at some point.  
 

Spousal Carve Out – Health Insurance  

a. Mr. Lohr explained that the City’s policy for insurance includes spousal carve out. This means that if your 
spouse has insurance available to them, we make them take their own insurance. We will still cover your 
dependents, but the spouse must go with their insurance if they have it.  
 

b. Mr. Lohr did an informal poll for employees asking if we did not have spousal carve out would they bring 
their spouse on to the plan. Currently we have 16 in 2024 and there would be 4 likely changes. Mr. 
Faulkner asked what if we offered a waiver stipend. Would employees go to their spouse’s insurance. Mr. 
Lohr agreed that was a good question and said he would ask that to employees. Mr. Faulkner said there 
are a lot of variables. Mrs. Kemper stated four was not a lot of people. Mr. Faulkner said he was talking 
about the other way. If your spouse has it, I will drop the City’s and go with my spouse. Mr. Kilpatrick asked 
if we were allowed to do that. Mr. Faulkner said he gets a stipend from his employer for being on his wife’s. 
Mrs. Kemper said that some do not, and they go to where you work first, then spouse second. Mr. 
Kilpatrick said that if it’s going to cost us $6,000 and we offer a stipend of $2,000 or $3,000, it would save 
us $3,000. Mr. Lohr said there could be big cost savings. Mr. Bicknell said that he has been giving it a lot of 
thought and it has come up in conversation that he knows a couple paying 85% more in insurance 
because they must have separate insurance. He said it made him think we already have lower wages, is 
that really something we want to push on to the employees at that cost? Mr. Kilpatrick asked could we offer 
the “non carve outs” to bring their spouse over but offer a stipend to those who don’t? Mr. Lohr said yes. 
Mr. Bicknell said he would hate to force an employee to pay thousands more because we do not allow their 
spouse to be on our insurance. He knows this is difficult because it is also a cost to us, but that is one thing 
regardless of ow we are doing, we must do. Mr. Kilpatrick said his outlook on this is to get great people, 
work them well, and if we can offer a better package, we can get better people who stay and work harder. 
We can push them harder and get more out of them to get a better, cohesive team. The more we can do to 
attract that top talent he is for. He said this is counter intuitive to his fiscal conservativity, but for him it is 
getting the best people. Mr. Bicknell said in the position he is in, the ability to make more money comes 



City of Carlisle Council Work Session Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

from his ability to work and make proper cuts, saving them more money. We can empower them to make 
things work more efficiently. Mayor Winkler said that is organizational management. Mr. Kilpatrick said so 
we talk to Department Heads and say we want to get you the best workers possible, what are five ways we 
can cut costs. Mrs. Kemper said as someone who worked in government all her life, she knows they don’t 
pay top dollar, but they have good benefits. When you worked in a government office health insurance was 
great, although it has changed over the years. People who work in government already know that you get 
good benefits and that’s what they look at. Mr. Kilpatrick asked Mr. Faulkner what Franklin did over there. 
Mr. Faulkner said that in 2008 they made an unpopular decision to go to an HSA. Mrs. Kemper said that 
health insurance will always rise. Even with rising health insurance, there were still good benefits. Mr. 
Faulkner said that you can make an HSA more attractive depending on the plan you set up.  
 

c. Mr. Lohr said the total cost to implement this would be a 28% increase. He said it is not a ton, when you 
look at the budget. It would be around $78,000 for the change. Mr. Stivers asked if this was for four 
changes. Mr. Lohr confirmed this was for four changes. There is a big difference between employee only, 
employee plus dependents and adding the spouse to it. Mr. Faulkner asked what the family rate was. Mr. 
Lohr did not have that exact number with him. Mr. Lohr said wear paying around $30,000 for a family plan. 
Mr. Faulkner asked what the employee share of the plan was. Mr. Lohr said it was 10%. Mr. Faulker asked 
for clarification about whether it was $300 a pay or a month. Mr. Lohr explained the annual rate was 
$30,000. Mrs. Kemper asked specifically what employees pay for each check. Mr. Lohr said it would 
depend on which plan the employee chooses. Mr. Kilpatrick questioned how employees afford that. Mr. 
Stivers asked if the $30,000 is what Carlisle pays. Mr. Lohr confirmed yes, and the employees pay 10% of 
that. Ms. Kemper asked what health company we are with. Mr. Lohr said we are with Medical Mutual. 
Mayor Winkler asked if getting into the OBC would really help us. Mr. Lohr said yes, and that he prefers the 
OBC, but if it does not work out, that there are others out there. We need to get with a bigger group of 
people, so that we can negotiate rates. Mr. Kilpatrick said at that price we could afford to pay the employee 
a stipend to not take insurance. Mr. Faulkner said that is if their spouse has access to insurance, and they 
do not pay a penalty to take it. Mr. Kilpatrick said we could get more aggressive than that at $30,000. He 
asked if insurance costs us $30,000 and we offer them $10,000, is there anything illegal about that? Mr. 
Lohr said no, we can offer a waiver and we can set the rate. His feelings are mixed about this, because if 
we get into the OBC, their rates are only single and family. There will not be a lot of savings because the 
employee and a child are a family, the same as an employee, spouse and multiple kids. The way our 
premiums are set up, it is beneficial to have the spousal carve out. He would like to provide that to 
employees, but it is a big cost to us. Mr. Lohr would like to continue to have this conversation as we move 
forward with the budget, and if we get accepted into the OBC, we will have to allow spouses. There are 
some options, like the stipend payment that he can look at.  

Finance Committee Reminder – October 17, 2023, 6PM 

1. Mr. Lohr placed a reminder for the Finance Committee Meeting next Tuesday at 6pm in Council 
Chambers. 

Mr. Lohr asked to speak about utility aggregation. We have two issues on next month’s ballot. Last week, 
Mr. Lohr put out some information that we have our own web page, now. Energy Alliance put together a 
webpage for us. Mr. Kilpatrick asked where the webpage was. Mrs. Kemper said you can go to our 
Facebook and click on it. She said there is a meeting on the 24th, that is listed on Facebook. Mr. Lohr 
confirmed the date and said it would be 6pm-7pm. It will be a presentation and then residents can ask 
questions. He plans to get more information out on the website, Facebook and the utility bills, if possible.  

Mr. Kilpatrick asked what the next steps for the water system improvement. Mr. Lohr said we are waiting 
to hear back about our submitted Ohio Public Works application. He will follow up with Shelby to find out 
what we need to do while we wait. Mr. Kilpatrick asked if that application allows us to drill under the 
railroad. Mr. Lohr said it was discussed, but he is not sure if it will be incorporated into the project. Mr. 
Kilpatrick said it sounded like Casey’s wanted to start. Mr. Lohr said they wanted to, but there was no 
interest and now they want to take down the building in November. Mr. Kilpatrick asked if there was a 
permit for demolition. Mr. Lohr said we would not need one, if we had a construction permit. He would not 
require that, but he will do some research on the planning commission case and see what valid permits 
we have. He knows they renewed a building permit, and their planning commission approval is until April. 



City of Carlisle Council Work Session Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

They sent in a sign packet that needs reviewed and he isn’t sure they have a valid permit for that. They 
also have some plans for water and sewer lateral.  

Mayor Winkler asked if there was any update for Clerk of Council and Community Development. Mr. Lohr 
said he made an offer for Assistant to the City Manager and Clerk, and she has accepted. She plans to 
start next Monday. She is someone Mr. Lohr worked with previously, who has done most of the job’s 
components and it seems to be a good fit. Her name is Elayna. Mr. Lohr said he made an offer to a 
Community Development candidate that he had to rescind because the background did not check out. He 
plans to discuss the position with the other candidate. Mr. Humphries asked what would disqualify a 
candidate in their background check. Mr. Lohr said there was a revoked driver’s license, a suspended 
license, complicated court cases and a police report from the previous employer. Mr. Lohr said it was 
disappointing. Mr. Kilpatrick asked if these questions were asked in the interview. Mr. Lohr said that there 
were discussions, but it never came up.  

Mrs. Kemper asked about the gas station with the drive-thru on the other side of the tracks. Mr. Lohr 
confirmed it was the one on the property we sold and that they were still working on the permit process. 
Mrs. Kemper asked if it was their permits that were delaying them. Mr. Lohr said yes, they still have some 
items to take care of.  

Mr. Kilpatrick asked if they had a meeting about something coming across from us. Mr. Faulkner said the 
planning commission approved the preliminary plan. He said it is a banquet center/car repair. Mayor 
Winkler asked if this was the old building property by the underpass. Mr. Lohr confirmed this. Mr. 
Humphries said it was the most organized presentation he had ever seen. Mr. Lohr agreed with him, and 
he would check about sending the renderings out to Council. Mayor Winkler asked if they are currently 
operating a trucking company there. Mr. Lohr said he did not think so. As he understands, they are not 
operating on vehicles and those are their private vehicles. Mr. Lohr said it is an odd combination, but it 
sounds like they will be able to separate the uses. He thinks this will help with traffic on Central Avenue. 
Mr. Kilpatrick asked if we are going to allow vehicle egress onto Central. Mr. Lohr said Shelby Ingle is 
looking into that. There are concerns and we did request they do a traffic study because this is going to 
impact not only Central, but we are trying to put in a new traffic light down the street. Even if we are 
sending those semis up Union and around to the back of the site, then that is going to have an impact on 
our design minimally for the traffic light there. Mr. Kilpatrick said even with the banquet center, too, 
because a lot of those have a lot of cars. Mr. Lohr agreed and said that on Friday, Saturday and Sunday 
evenings we are going to see a lot of cars in and out of there. Mr. Kilpatrick said that supposedly they will 
have a lot of Pakistani weddings and he would like to research on that if there are specific nights of the 
week. Mr. Bicknell said that usually they are multiple nights.  

Mr. Bicknell said back to the property we sold behind the doctor’s office; didn’t we write a stipulation in 
that? Mr. Lohr said he had heard that. Mrs. Kemper said the end of last year. Mr. Bicknell said we are not 
far from that one year. Mr. Lohr said he signed the sale of property after he started here, and that was in 
June. If that is what we are looking at, he has until the middle of next year.  

Mayor Winkler asked if we had heard anymore from the Dollar Tree. Mr. Lohr said they are still working 
on permits.  

Mr. Kilpatrick asked back to what you asked about that one year, are you asking if we should pull it back? 
Mr. Bicknell said if they are not doing anything, then absolutely. Mrs. Kemper said they came in ready to 
go. Mr. Kilpatrick said because Casey’s was not ready to go and they could get up in six months, then 
they would take it.  

Mr. Bicknell said you had mentioned a company to come in and pre-build some industrial. Mr. Lohr said 
he had not heard anything from them. Last time he checked in the APEX, they had not heard back from 
them, either. Mr. Bicknell asked if he had anything new at all. Mr. Lohr said no, but he would check in with 
them. He has not spoken to them in a while. Mayor Winkler said there was a group who did that to start 
the industrial park years ago. They built buildings and did not finish the interior and sold them.   



City of Carlisle Council Work Session Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Mr. Stivers asked if there was an update on Dacraft. Mr. Lohr said he had a conversation today with Mr. 
Wax. He is looking to build the approved accessory structure from 2020. It has expired, but Mr. Lohr will 
get him the information to reapply for that. He said there needs to be a deadline to get these storage 
containers off the property. Mr. Bicknell asked if we have started a formal process because at this point, 
we need to issue citations. Mr. Loh said he has not. Mr. Bicknell asked how long the containers have 
been there. Mr. Lohr said it has been a long time. Mr. Humphries said it has been many, many years. Mr. 
Lohr said last he heard they had gotten the engineers’ stamp on the plans updated and he believes we 
have gotten those back. We should have been able to issue the permit. Mr. Humphries said anything they 
have going on is not easy. If they cannot build and do what you need to daily, getting rid of 50-60 tractor 
trailers is not on their list to do.   

Mr. Stivers asked about the appliance store. Mr. Lohr said he was in court on Wednesday of last week. 
The judge gave him until the middle of November to make progress. Mr. Humphries asked if Mr. Fox, the 
magistrate, feels he is incompliant. Mr. Lohr said our Code Enforcement Officer, Mr. Kelly, said that he is 
agreeable in conversation. Mr. Humphries asked if he acknowledges that there is nine tons of metal 
outside of his building. Mayor Winkler said there are one hundred eighty appliances. Mr. Faulkner 
questioned how that happens. Mrs. Kemper said if it is part of the Dunn’s, they had a place in Miamisburg 
that closed, and it was brought down. She said a lot happened during COVID.  

Mr. Bicknell said Refresco has made a lot of improvements. They are a huge part of the junction motor we 
have been having. He asked if it would be beneficial to ask them to come in and ask them what their five-
year forecast is because they have grown expeditiously, already. He said we had a meeting with them at 
their facility. Mr. Humphries said they had a five-year deal and five million dollars’ worth of infrastructure. 
Mr. Bicknell said their business has grown and he would like to help, as City Officials, them to get to the 
next level. We are in the process of wanting to get away from this pump station and engaging them in it. 
He believes they are the second largest employer in the city. Mr. Humphries said they are the world’s 
largest independent bottling company. Mr. Kilpatrick said he wanted to point out that we have other 
businesses in that business park, like Pure White Tail, and even though they look like a plain building, 
today they ship a thousand orders out. He said it is exciting to see that. Mr. Kilpatrick said also the RV 
place, in a nondescript building, ship over one hundred orders.  

 

Adjournment: 

With no further business, Council adjourned the meeting by voice vote. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m. 

 

        Date:      

 

 

               
       Mayor 
 

Attest:       
Clerk of Council 

 



MUNICIPALITY OF CARLISLE COUNCIL MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

OCTOBER 10, 2023 – 7:00 P.M. 
760 CENTRAL AVENUE, CARLISLE, OHIO 

 
Mayor Randy Winkler called the Carlisle, Ohio City Council Regular Meeting of Tuesday, October 
10, 2023 to order in Council Chambers at the Carlisle City Hall building, 760 Central Avenue, Carlisle, 
Ohio.  The meeting was opened at 7:01 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Roll Call:   

Mr. William Bicknell  present 
Mrs. Debbie Kemper  present  
Mr. Jason Faulkner  present 
Mr. Tim Humphries  present 
Mr. Chris Stivers  present 
Mr. Michael Kilpatrick  present 
Mayor Randy Winkler  present  

 
Staff members present: City Manager, Chris Lohr  
    Finance Director, Kristina Cooper 
 
 
The regular meeting Minutes of September 26, 2023, were presented to Council for review. Mr. 
Faulkner made a motion to approve the minutes, seconded by Mrs. Kemper.   
 
Roll Call: 
 Mr. Humphries yes 
 Mr. Stivers  yes 
 Mr. Kilpatrick  yes 
 Mrs. Kemper  yes 
 Mr. Bicknell  yes 
 Mr. Faulkner  yes  

Mayor Winkler  yes 
  
The regular meeting Minutes of September 26, 2023, were approved as presented. 
 

Public Forum: 

With no guests in the audience, Mayor Winkler closed the public forum and moved on to Council 
Reports.  
 

Council Reports: 

Mr. Humphries: 

1. He wanted to say there is a lot of road crew activity going on in Carlisle. There are a lot of utility 
poles being wired and multiple poles will be removed and new ones put in so there’s a lot of 



Municipality of Carlisle Council Meeting Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

one-way traffic so if everyone could do our best to pay attention to the people that are directing 
traffic and let’s let those people go home safely.  
 

2. Mental wellness – Just to remind everybody with the holidays coming up, the days being shorter 
and darkness being longer, dial 988. We’d more than welcome to hear your complaints and 
issues in your life than to talk about what we could have done different so 988 for mental 
wellness if you have some challenges in your life.  

Mr. Stivers:  

1. Just wanted to let everyone know as it gets colder wild animals in our area and specifically he’s 
seen a couple of coyotes on a couple different occasions and as food gets more scarce and it 
gets colder, if you have small animals when you let them out at night maybe stay with them and 
don’t let them out for too long because especially with small pets as they could easily become a 
target.  

Mr. Kilpatrick: 

Nothing to report.  

Mr. Bicknell: 

1. They had the JEMS meeting last week. Things are moving along quite well. If you’ve noticed all 
the scaffolding and everything was removed today where you could see the front doors and 
everything so that’s 90% done. Exterior walls were starting today so hopefully by the end of the 
week, barring any weather, you’ll see the exterior structure of the framing starting to go up. 
Hopefully by next week we’re hoping to have the concrete poured into the bay doors and that 
will have a good time to set, and then we’ll start moving. With that inside they did build a wall 
above the tornado shelter to start putting some stuff around there to keep there for right now.  

2. For the September runs, he doesn’t know if Council received those but for the month of 
September there were 38 incidents in Carlisle; a total of 174 within the jurisdiction; we gave 41 
mutual aids and only needed to receive 2 mutual aids. The two we received assistance on 
wasn’t due to short staffing but rather due to all of our apparatuses being out servicing the 
citizens so we needed extra care to come in.  

3. We are entering the cold months and it’s darker, so pay attention with school drop offs. We do 
have a lot of kids walking on Fairview and we have no sidewalks there so please pay a lot of 
attention to your surrounding areas. He would encourage parents if your kids do walk have 
them wear something with high visibility in the morning whether it be a light on their backpack 
or a vest though he knows that’s not fashionable but it’s more safe. Then we need to pay 
attention even at night time for events because our community has a lot of kids that live close 
enough to do a lot of walking so we want to make sure we’re always paying attention. Mr. 
Stivers added to tell your kids to walk against traffic also and Mr. Bicknell reiterated yes, 
walking against is better than with traffic.  

  



Municipality of Carlisle Council Meeting Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Mrs. Kemper:  

1. With the holidays coming up the next several months she wanted to share Save the Dates as 
there’s a lot of things going on in Carlisle over the next few months.  

a. Trunk or Treat is Sunday, October 29th from 4:00 – 6:00 PM over at the Carlisle School 
parking lot. That is sponsored by Valley Real Estate and The Church in the Village.  

b. Beggar’s Night is Tuesday, October 31st from 6:00 – 8:00 PM.  

c. The Lions Club is going to be having a Holiday Bazaar on Sunday, November 5th from 
1:00 – 5:00 PM.  

d. Carlisle’s Christmas Tree Lighting and Santa is on Monday, November 27th at 6:00 PM. 
It’s a little earlier this year due to Santa being very busy.  

e. We will also be doing the Holiday at Home decorating contest again this year and will 
have more details on that later. 

Mr. Faulkner: 

Nothing to report.  

With that, Mayor Winkler closed the Council Report and moved on to the Mayor’s Report.  

Mayor’s Report: 

1. He was contacted by the Mayor of Springboro and also the Mayor of Franklin regarding 
November 11th is Veteran’s Day, so we’re going to do a 3-community Veteran’s Day 
Recognition. The Mayor of Springboro approached me with this while we were in Washington 
DC. He has since spoken with the Village Station Bar & Grill. We’re going to do a Pancake 
Breakfast for all Veteran’s on Saturday, November 11th. It will be a free meal so we encourage 
all Veteran’s to come to the Village Station Bar & Grill. We’re still working out a few of the details 
but he’s assuming it’s going to be around 9:00 AM. 
 

2. He would also like to encourage all of our residents that since cold weather is coming on and 
some folks are firing up their furnaces. If you haven’ had an opportunity to get your furnace 
checked out you might want to do so to make sure we don’t get any carbon monoxide calls for 
anyone and make sure your furnace filters have been changed and your furnace is in good 
working condition before you fire it up.  

Mayor Winkler closed the Mayor’s Report and moved on to the City Manager’s Report.  

Manager’s Report: 

1. Mrs. Kemper had already mentioned the Trunk or Treat. He wanted to mention the Carlisle 
Police Department will be there handing out candy. The Chief wanted him to make sure and 
mention that. 



Municipality of Carlisle Council Meeting Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 4 of 7 
 

2. Chief also wanted Mr. Lohr to mention that in Lebanon there’s going to be a National School 
Bus Safety launch on October 13th. The Police Department will be in attendance. As most 
know, we had a tragic bus accident earlier in the year, so with next week being School Bus 
Safety Week there’s obviously a lot of importance placed on that.  

3. We are still working on the Authority Tax Upgrade. We’re still on track to have that live 
sometime in November so that will be our last CMI Module that we’re upgrading to the Authority 
version.  

4. We’re also upgrading the way we accept Credit Card payments. With the company we are 
changing to we will be able to take online payments for everything we do and not just utility 
payments so we’ll be able to receive payments for Mayor’s Court, park shelter rentals, and that 
sort of thing. With that he wanted to mention with this new company there is going to be a 
convenience fee. Previously the City has absorbed that cost but with the new service there’ll be 
a 3.5% that will be paid directly by the resident. Mr. Kilpatrick asked if there’s a way to accept 
ACH payments with that software. Mr. Lohr didn’t know but can research further and get an 
answer. 

5. They are still working on the generator for the Police Department and Service Building. That 
was budgeted at about $50,000 for this year. We have one quote that came in at about 
$53,000; we’re getting a second quote and may pursue a third one to see if we can get to that 
$50,000 mark, but that’s something we are hoping we can still get rolling on this year.  

 

With that the Mayor closed the City Manager’s Report.  
 

Committee Report:   

None   

Old Business:   

None   

New Business:   

None 
 
Mayor Winkler closed the Community Reports and moved on to First Readings of Ordinances and 
Resolutions.  
 
 
First Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions:  

None.  

With no First Readings, Mayor Winkler moved on to Second and Third Readings.  

  



Municipality of Carlisle Council Meeting Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Second and Third Readings of Ordinances and Resolutions:  

 

RESOLUTION 19-23 A THEN-AND-NOW CERTIFICATE FOR CARLISLE LOCAL SCHOOLS ON FOR 
AN EMERGENCY.  

Mayor Winkler asked Mr. Lohr to explain the Emergency. Mr. Lohr deferred to Ms. Cooper to provide 
the explanation.  

Ms. Cooper stated the reason it is on tonight for an Emergency is because the temp agreement we 
signed with the schools only a 30-day turnaround between us receiving the funds and paying the 
schools so that’s why it has to be passed as an Emergency. Mr. Faulkner asked would she be able to 
share two times of year the dates that it usually happens? Ms. Cooper stated sometime in April and 
sometime in September generally. Mr. Faulkner added he really appreciated the summary sheet she 
provided that showed the Property Tax disbursements between that and what the TIF Funds actually 
got. Mr. Kilpatrick asked is there a way for us to avoid an Emergency by having us pass some 
legislation at the beginning of the year for that kind of thing or do we have to wait until it comes in to 
pass the legislation? Ms. Cooper said they are looking at opening up blanket Purchase Orders, but the 
problem is we reimburse the schools based on how much we receive.  

Mayor Winkler asked for a motion to suspend the rule requiring three readings, have one reading by 
title only and declaring an emergency. Mr. Faulkner made a motion, seconded by Mr. Kilpatrick.  

Roll Call: 
Mr. Faulkner yes 
Mr. Kilpatrick yes  
Mr. Bicknell yes 
Mrs. Kemper yes 
Mr. Stivers  yes 
Mr. Humphries yes 
Mayor Winkler yes 

 

The motion for Emergency approval has been approved.  

RESOLUTION 19-23:  A RESOLUTION APPROVING A THEN-AND-NOW CERTIFICATE IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $ 540,620.42 TO CARLISLE LOCAL SCHOOL FOR THE DISTRIBUTION 
OF THE 2ND HALF TAX SETTLEMENT. 

The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt. Mr. Kilpatrick made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Kemper.  

Roll Call: 
Mr. Kilpatrick yes  
Mrs. Kemper yes 
Mr. Stivers  yes 
Mr. Humphries yes 
Mr. Bicknell yes 
Mr. Faulkner yes 
Mayor Winkler yes 



Municipality of Carlisle Council Meeting Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Resolution 19-23 has now been adopted.  

 
ORDINANCE 24-23:  ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY CREDIT AND DEBIT CARD POLICY ON 
FOR A 3rd AND FINAL READING.  
 
Mr. Lohr stated he knows we have talked about this previously but currently, our credit card policy 
states we are very limited in the way we can use them so right now the Finance Director stays in control 
of the cards, and we can distribute them to employees for use during the day, however, that has 
created some operational difficulties. We would like to transition to the proposed credit card policy that 
allows us to issue credit cards to Department Heads and specify which employees will have that. Then 
the check for that is we will have somebody responsible for keeping track of those credit cards as well 
as compiling quarterly reports to make sure that we’re using them appropriately. Mr. Faulkner asked 
would that person be Ms. Cooper. Mr. Lohr stated the way that the law is written it cannot be a card 
holder so our plan is that he would designate the Finance Clerk so we would have that independent 
person reviewing all the records. Mr. Faulkner asked is it a problem if the Clerk works for the Finance 
Director? Mr. Lohr stated no. 
 
 
ORDINANCE 24-23: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 236.11 OF THE CARLISLE 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES REGARDING THE CITY CREDIT AND DEBIT CARD POLICY.      

A motion to adopt was made by Mr. Kilpatrick and seconded by Mrs. Kemper.  

Roll Call: 
Mr. Kilpatrick yes  
Mrs. Kemper yes 
Mr. Faulkner yes 
Mr. Bicknell yes 
Mr. Stivers  yes 
Mr. Humphries yes 
Mayor Winkler yes 

 

Ordinance 24:23 has been adopted.  
 

Mayor Winkler asked if there was any further discussion. Hearing none, he asked for a motion to adopt. 
Mr. Bicknell made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Kemper.  

 
Roll Call: 

Mr. Bicknell yes 
Mrs. Kemper yes 
Mr. Faulkner yes 
Mr. Stivers  yes 
Mr. Humphries yes 
Mr. Kilpatrick yes  
Mayor Winkler yes 

 

Ordinance 21-23 has been adopted.  



Municipality of Carlisle Council Meeting Minutes   Tuesday, October 10, 2023  

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

RESOLUTION 17-23:  APPROVING THE WARREN COUNTY SOLID WASTE PLAN – (3rd and Final 
Reading) 

Mr. Lohr stated this has been a request from the Warren County Solid Waste District and they have 
requested that we approve this plan and that request is a requirement of the EPA. 
 

RESOLUTION 17-23:   A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 
PLAN OF THE WARREN COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT.  
Mayor Winkler asked if there was any discussion. There was none. He asked for a motion to adopt. Mr. 
Bicknell made a motion, seconded by Mr. Kilpatrick.  

Roll Call:   
Mr. Bicknell  yes 
Mr. Kilpatrick  yes  
Mr. Stivers  yes 
Mr. Humphries yes 
Mr. Faulkner  yes 
Mrs. Kemper  yes 
Mayor Winkler  yes 

 

Resolution 17:23 has been adopted on this date.  

Mayor Winkler stated that is all they have on the agenda this evening and asked for a motion to 
adjourn. Mr. Kilpatrick made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Stivers.  

Roll Call:   
Mr. Kilpatrick  yes  
Mr. Stivers  yes 
Mrs. Kemper  yes 
Mr. Faulkner  yes 
Mr. Bicknell  yes 
Mr. Humphries yes 
Mayor Winkler  yes 

 
 

Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 

        Date:      

 

               
        Mayor      
           
Attest:        

Clerk of Council  



Agenda Item Introduction 
CARLISLE CITY COUNCIL 

Council Meeting Date: October 24, 2023 

Prepared By: Kristina Cooper, Finance Director 

Agenda Item: RES NO 20-23:         APPROVING A THEN-AND-NOW CERTIFICATE 

Legislative Title: A RESOLUTION APPROVING A THEN-AND-NOW CERTIFICATE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$20,600.00 TO PERRY & ASSOCIAES CPAS FOR THE 2021-2022 AUDIT 

Summary: 
When the audit process started early in the year, a purchase order was not opened prior to authorizing Perry & Associates to begin 
work. Due to state law requirements, the Then-and-Now certificate is required to be approved by the legislative authority. 

Financial or Budget Considerations: 
None anticipated.  

Recommended Action: 
Approval by single reading. 

Supporting Documents: 
Invoice and Then-and-Now Certificate       



RESOLUTION 20-23 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A THEN-AND-NOW CERTIFICATE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$20,600.00 TO PERRY & ASSOCIAES CPAS FOR THE 2021-2022 AUDIT  

WHEREAS,  a purchase order was not opened prior authorizing Perry & Associates CPAs to 
begin work on the 2021-2022 audit; and, 

WHEREAS,  Ohio Revised Code 5705.41(D)(1) requires affirmation by City Council by 
resolution of any Then-and-Now Certificate of $3,000 or greater in value. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARLISLE, 
OHIO, THAT: 

SECTION 1:  A Then-and-Now Certificate in the amount of $20,600.00 to Perry & Associates 
CPAs is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after the earliest point 
allowed by law. 

Adopted:  __________________________ 

__________________________________ 

Mayor 

Atest:  _____________________________ 

Clerk of Council 



PURCHASE ORDER 

BILL TO: CITY OF CARLISLE 
760 CENTRAL AVE. 
CARLISLE, OHIO 45005-3389 
(937) 746-0555 I KRISTINA COOPER 

P.O. NUMBER 

REQUISITION 

P.O. DATE 

REQUEST BY 

TERMS 

VENDOR# 

EXPIRE DATE 

RG121056 

001050 

10/17/2023 

KC 

NO 

01791 

CITY OF CARLISLE 
760 CENTRAL AVE 
CARLISLE OH 45005 

ACCOUNT WW•i•IHM ACCOUNT 

DELIVER 
TO: 

101 .2404.53710 13,802.00 602.0000.53710 

PERRY & ASSOCIATES CPAS 
TO: 313 SECOND STREET 

MARIETTA, OH 45750 

TAXPAYER ID#31-0668707 
THE ABOVE PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER MUST APPEAR ON ALL BILLS AND PACKAGES. 

QUANTITY IIIIDlillll DESCRIPTION 

FUNDS WERE AVAILABLE THEN AND ARE 

AVAILABLE NOW TO SATISFY THE 

LIABILITY REFLECTED HEREON 

PER ORC 5705.41 (0 )(1) 

Material on this order is exempted from the Ohio Sales and Federal Excise Taxes 
FISCAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE 

PRICE / UNIT 

TOTAL 

#W•i•IHM 
6,798.00 

AMOUNT 

$20,600.00 

$20,600.00 

It is hereby certified that the amount required to meet the contract , agreement, obligation , payment or expenditure for the above , has been lawfully appropriated or authorized or 
directed for such purposes and is in the Treasury or in process of collection to the credit of the required fund free from any obligation or certification now outstanding. 

10/17/2023 ""l 1fil,v\O. ~ 
DATE FINANCE DIRECTOR 



***  Notification of Approved IPA Contract Invoice   ***

The following represents the billing information submitted to the Auditor of State IPA Portal for the 
engagement services of City of Carlisle for the period 01/01/2021 through 12/31/2022.  This IPA contract 
invoice is approved by the Auditor of State and can be processed for payment to the IPA listed below.

Kristina Cooper, Finance Director
City of Carlisle
760 West Central Avenue
Carlisle, OH 45005-3389 

This represents our 1st invoice for services in connection with the examination of the City of Carlisle for the 
period 01/01/2021 through 12/31/2022.

Firm FEIN: 55-0771624

Project Number: 35H58WARR-FA222

IPA Invoice Number: 128720-FY2022.I

Engagement Services for the period of 1/1/2023 to 10/13/2023

Current Invoice Amount $16,480.00

Cumulative Billed $16,480.00

Fixed Fee Contract Amount $20,600.00

Percent Complete 80.00%

Perry & Associates Certified Public Accountants, A.C, hereby certifies that all amounts set forth in this 
invoice are properly due and payable for work performed by either Perry & Associates Certified Public 
Accountants, A.C, or a qualified subcontractor.

Submitted by: Jodey Altier on 10/13/2023 

Please remit payment to:

Perry & Associates Certified Public Accountants, A.C,
313 Second Street
Marietta, OH 45750

IPA Contract Invoice Information

*** Please do not send payments to Auditor of State ***

Email: jaltier@perrycpas.net

Invoice Amount: $16,480.00

OHIO AUDITOR 0~ 
KEITHFABV 



Agenda Item Introduction 
CARLISLE CITY COUNCIL 

Council Meeting Date: October 24, 2023 

Prepared By: Kristina Cooper, Finance Director 

Agenda Item: RES NO: 21-23 Warren County 2024 Tax Rates and Amounts 

Legislative Title: A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 AMOUNTS AND RATES AS 
DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND THE AUTHROZING OF THE NECESSARY 
TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE WARREN COUNTY AUDITOR, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

Summary: 
The City is required to annually certify tax rates and amounts as provided by the County. This measure is traditionally approved as an 
emergency as the turn round time from when the City receives it and the required approval date are shorter than is needed for multiple 
readings.  

Financial or Budget Considerations: 
None anticipated.  

Recommended Action: 
Approval as an emergency. 

Supporting Documents: 
Rates and Amounts 



RESOLUTION 21-23 
CITY OF CARLISLE, OHIO 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 AMOUNTS AND RATES AS 
DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND THE AUTHROZING OF THE 
NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE WARREN COUNTY 
AUDITOR, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, City Council, in accordance with the provisions of law, has 
previously adopted a Tax Budget for the next succeeding fiscal year commencing 
January 1, 2024;  

WHEREAS, the Budget Commission of Warren County, Ohio, has certified its 
action thereon to this Council together with an estimate by the County Auditor of the rate 
of each tax necessary to be levied by this Council, and what part thereof is without, and 
what part within, the ten-mill tax limitation; and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to ORC 5705.34, Council shall enact a resolution 
accepting the rates and amounts reflected herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CARLSILE, OHIO THAT:  

SECTION 1: The amounts and rates, as determined by the Budget Commission in its 
certification and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, are and the same is 
hereby accepted. 

SECTION 2: That there be and is hereby levied on the tax duplicate of said City the 
rate of each tax necessary to be levied within and without the ten-mill 
limitation.  

SECTION 3: This resolution is on as an emergency and shall take effect and be in full 
force and effect from and after the earliest date allowed by law upon 
adopted, in accordance with Sections 5.03 and 5.04 of the Carlisle 
Charter. 

SECTION 4: That the Clerk of the Council be and is hereby directed to certify a copy 
of this Resolution to the County Auditor of Warren County. 

Adopted: _____________________ _______________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: _______________________ 
     Clerk of Council 



The Eudget Commission of WARREN COUNTY, Ohio, hereby makes the following Official Ce(ificate of Estimated Resources

forthe MUNICIPALITY OF CARLISLE, for the fiscal 7st,2024

OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY BUDGET COMMISSION

Unencumbered
Balance

Jan. 1st, 2024

FUND TotalProperty Tax Other Sources

General Fund - 1000

Special Revenue

(Local Government)
1,529,950.00

34,172.57

19,315.00

619,313.00
118,218.00

271,699.N
8,101.00

21,509.00

311,664.00

131,503.00

54,682.00
242,130.00

77,212.OO

511,914.00
5,236.00

5,489.00

3,\17,956.51

sqzitg.oo
.00

.00

.00

.00

q
.00

q0

.00

1,450,894.00 103,000.00

I
2

3

4

5

6

7

a

9

10

11

72

13

'14

Fire

Road

state Road
lcornty v"hiJrr.r",

-,129{ap
232,993

s17,3fo
15,966

12,321
6!4,2s9

lss,!s
r97,711

4U.2o]
33,V:3

1,48,917
10,320

368,064.00
601,275,00

t74,775.OO

259,511.00

7,865.00

20,882.00

302,586.00

127,672.00

53,089.00
235,078.00

16,711.00

497,003.00

5,084.00
5,329.00

155,000.00

CfT {Continued Proof ofTraining)
Law Enforcement
tagle Ridge TIF

lndian Trace TIF

Timber Ridge TIF

Waterbury TIF

Mayor's Court lmprovement
Police Service

3rt.9" lgof srl.t
Carlisle Business Park

rxxL
xxxx

lxxr
[xxx
Ixxr
xxxL
I}XX
XXXX

lxxl
IXXL
uxx
Ixxx
XXXX

00

q0

00

00

10,818.00

Entefprise
I lewg 2,747,543.O0

566,990.00

577,762.@

2,829,969.OO

584,000.00

521,115.00

5,517,572.@
1,150,990.00

ryXX
xxxl
xxxxi Refuse 1,038,877.00

0.00

00

00

0.00

0.00

16.00
2J65!s 9:o

1,576,8s3.00

23.00

t20,o22.oo

800,078.00
0.00

922.OO

6,58s.00
1,145.00

3,776.OO

6.00

Dgb! SgrvrEe
1 Nnion Road txtension
2 lEagle Court Assessments

3 Jamaica Road Assessments

Capital Proiects

Ixxr
Lxxx
xxxx

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

CACIL
I
Park Capitallmprovements
Sewer Capital lmprovements

Water Capital lmprovements

5R 123 Reconstruction, PH lV

SR 123 Reconstruction, PH V

bR 123 Reconstruction, PH Vl

SR 123 Reconstruction, PH Vll
SR 123 Reconstruction, PH X

23.00

176,527.OO

776,775.00

0.00
895.00

6,393.00

1,112.0O

3,083.00

6.00

r
],8q.

J2,y8.
2,2!
9,2sj.

ryxL
xxxx

lxx!
qxL
]xxl
LXXL
]XXI
qxL
XXXX

00

00

00

12.00

8,ao1,o2t.00 2s8,000.00 -,781,088.s7
11,846,175.57
1l 115.57

The Eudget Commission further certifies that its action on the foregoing budget and the County Auditor's estimate ofthe rate of each tax

necessaryto be levied within and without the 10 mill limitation is set forth on the propercolumns of the preceding pages, and the total

Budget

amount approved for each fund must govern the amount of appr r ation from such fund

TOTATS

(,I?



WARREN COUNTY

109,584,080.00

19,401,880.00

EST MATED PROPERTY TAX INCOME FOR CARL SLE CORPORATION FISCTL YR 2024

2023 TENTATIVE TAX YEAR

VALUES

ESTIMATED TAXES

LEVI€D CERTIFICATION @ 97%

AGRICULTURAL

194,560.00 dist 1E GENERAT 0.000920000
0.001810000
0.001800000
0,001830000
0.001160000
0.001354392

S 179.00 173.63
0.00 dist 19 GENERAL s

100,700.00 Mont Co 460, 435 GENERAL s 181.26 s 775.82
2,660,00 Mont Co 115 GENERAL s 4.47 5 4.72

6.725,970.00 Mont Co 455 GENERAL 6.93 S

303,890.00 FIRE 41-4.63 402.19

RES DENT AL

85,435,460.00 dist 1B

475,560.00 dist 19

GENERAL s 18,640.52 s 76,242.6 0
GENERAL s 860.76 S 834.94

3,970,250.00 Mont Co 460, 435 GENERAL 1,146.45 s 6,932.06
0.00 Mont Co 115 GENERAL s s
0.00 Mont Co 455 GENERAL s

s89,881,270.00 FIRE 122,633.29 s 118,954.29

COMMERCIAUINDUSTRIAL

9,872,010.00 d st 18

1,124,080.00 d st 19

GENERAL 0.000920000
0.001810000
0.001800000
0.001858518

S 082.25 8,809.78
GENERAL 034.58 1,973.55

36,610.00 Mont Co 460 GENERAL 65.90 s 63.92
11,03 700.00 FIRE S 24,504.47 S 19,889.34

PUBLIC UTILITY PERSONAL

8,144,060.00 d st 18 GENERAL 0.000920000
0.001810000
0.001800000
0.002000000

1,261.76
68,170.00 d st 19 GENERAL s 119.69

153,990,00 Mont Co 460 GENERAL s 268.87
8 366 220.40 F IRE S 76,230.47

G RAN D TOTALS

GENERAL Warren s 98,373.14 s 95,427.94

s 7,682.58 s 7,452.1.1
TOTAL GENERAL 55.72 s 702,874.O5
F RE s 284.82 5 L55,476.28

s sTOTALS 266,340.s4 350.33

2023 ty tent

Page 1

EFF RATE

0,000920000
0.001810000
0.001800000
0.001830000
0.001160000
0.001364392

7.492.54 I
123.39 s
277.78 s

16,732.M 5

GENERAL Montgomery



Agenda Item Introduction 
CARLISLE CITY COUNCIL 

Council Meeting Date: October 24, 2023 

Prepared By: Kristina Cooper, Finance Director 

Agenda Item: RES NO: 22-23 Montgomery County 2024 Tax Rates and Amounts 

Legislative Title: A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 AMOUNTS AND RATES AS 
DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND THE AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY 
TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY AUDITOR AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

Summary: 

The City is required to annually certify tax rates and amounts as provided by the County. This measure is traditionally approved as an 
emergency as the turn round time from when the City receives it and the required approval date are shorter than is needed for multiple 
readings.  

Financial or Budget Considerations: 
None anticipated.  

Recommended Action: 
Approval as an emergency. 

Supporting Documents: 
Rates and Amounts 



RESOLUTION 22-23
CITY OF CARLISLE, OHIO 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 AMOUNTS AND RATES AS 
DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND THE AUTHORIZING THE 
NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE MONTGOMERY 
COUNTY AUDITOR AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, Council, in accordance with the provisions of law, has previously 
adopted a Tax Budget for the succeeding fiscal year commencing January 1, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget Commission of Montgomery County, Ohio, has certified 
its action thereon to this Council, together with an estimate by the County Auditor of the 
rate of each tax necessary to be levied by this Council, and what part thereof is without, 
and what part within, the ten mill tax limitation.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CARLISLE, OHIO THAT: 

SECTION 1: The amounts and rates, as determined by the Budget Commission 
in its certification, are and the same is hereby accepted. 

SECTION 2: That there be an is hereby levied on the tax duplicate of said City 
the rate of each tax necessary to be levied within and without the 
ten mill limitation as follows: 

Schedule A: Summary of Amounts Required from General Property Tax 
Approved Budget Commission and County Auditor’s Estimated Tax Rates: 

Fund Amount Approved 
by Budget 

Commission Inside 
10M Limitation 

Amount to be 
Derived From 

Levies Outside 
10M Limitation 

Inside 
10M Limit 

Outside 
10M Limit 

City of Carlisle Tax 
Year 2023/2024 

Column I Column II III IV 

General Fund 
K51, K51-1 

7,287 1.80 

General Fund 
K50-1 

7 1.16 

General Fund 
D14-2 

5 1.83 

Fire Fund 5,644 2.00 
Total 7,299 5,644 



SCHEDULE B: Levies Outside 10 Mill Limitation – Column II: 

Fund Maximum Rate Authorized 
To Be Levied 

County Auditor’s Estimate 
of Yield of Levy (Carry to 

Sch A Column II) 
Special Levies: 
K51, K51-1, K50-1, D14-2 
Fire Levy authorized by 
voters 11/02/10 for a 
CONT period of time 

2.00 5,599 

SECTION 3: This resolution is on an emergency and shall take effect and be in 
full force and effect from and after the earliest date allowed by law 
upon adopted, in accordance with Sections 5.03 and 5.04 of the 
Carlisle Charter. 

SECTION 4: That the Clerk of the Council to be and is hereby directed to certify 
a copy of this Resolution to the County Auditor of Montgomery 
County.  

Adopted: ___________________________ _______________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: _____________________________ 
     Clerk of Council 



Village of Carlisle - Tax Year 2023/2024 Column I Column II   III IV

General Fund K51,K51-1……………………………………………… 7,287 1.80

General Fund K50-1…………………………………………………….. 7 1.16

General Fund D14-2…………………………………………………….. 5 1.83

Fire Fund………………………………………………………………………. 5,644 2.00

TOTAL 7,299 5,644

SUMMARY OF AMOUNTS REQUIRED FROM GENERAL PROPERTY TAX APPROVED BY BUDGET COMMISSION  

AND COUNTY AUDITOR'S ESTIMATED TAX RATES      

County Auditor's Estimate of 

Tax Rate To Be Levied

Page 2

Village of Carlisle - Tax Year 2023/2024

FUND

Amount To Be

Derived From

Levies

Outside

10 M. Limitation

Amount Approved

By Budget

Commission

Inside

10 M. Limitation

Inside

10 M.

Limit

Outside

10 M.

Limit

SCHEDULE A 



Village of Carlisle - Tax Year 2023/2024

FUND

Maximum Rate

Authorized

To Be Levied

County Auditor's

Estimate Of

Yield Of Levy

(Carry To Sch A

Column II)

SPECIAL LEVIES:

K51, K51-1, K50-1, D14-2
Fire Levy authorized by voters 2.00 5,644
  11/02/10 for a CONT period of time

SCHEDULE B
LEVIES OUTSIDE 10 MILL LIMITATION

Page 3

Carry to Sch A


	Agenda 10-24-23
	Council Work Session Minutes 10-10-23
	Council Minutes 10-10-23
	Res 20-23 - Intro -Then and Now Perry & Associates
	Res 20-23 Then and Now Perry & Associates
	Res 20-23 Attachment Then and Now Cert
	Res 20-23 Attachement Perry Contract
	Res 21-23 - Intro - Accepting Fiscal Year 2024 Warren County
	Res 21-23 A Resolution Accepting The Fiscal Year 2024, Warren County
	City of Carlisle Warren Co 21-22 Interim Invoice
	Res 22-23 - Intro - Accepting Fiscal Year 2024 Montgomery County
	Res 22-23 Accpeting 2024 Fiscal Year Amounts and Rates - Montgomery County
	V-TY23 Carlisle A&B



